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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA

Vern Halter, Mayor George Hays, Acting Borough Manager
PLANNING COMMISSION PLANNING & LAND USE
Mary Anderson, District 1 DEPARTMENT
Jason Ortiz, District 2 Alex Strawn, Acting Director of Planning
Patricia Chesbro, District 3 & Land Use
Colleen Vague, Chair, District 4 Kim Sollien, Planning Services Manager
Chris Elder, District 5 Mark Whisenhunt, Acting Development
Stafford Glashan, District 6 Services Manager
Sassan Mossanen, District 7 Fred Wagner, Platting Officer

Karol Riese, Planning Clerk

Assembly Chambers of the
Dorothy Swanda Jones Building
350 E. Dahlia Avenue, Palmer

August 3, 2020
REGULAR MEETING
6:00 p.m.

Ways to participate in Planning Commission meetings:

IN PERSON. Should you wish to testify in person, please adhere to the 6-foot distance between
yourself and others. It is highly recommended that you bring your own mask to wear.

IN WRITING: You can submit written comments to the Planning Commission Clerk at
planning@matsugov.us.

TELEPHONIC TESTIMONY:

Dial 1-855-225-1887; Conference ID #7854; You will hear “Joining conference” when
you are admitted to the meeting.

You will be automatically muted and able to listen to the meeting.

When the Chair announces audience participation or a public hearing you would like
to speak to, press *3; you will hear, “Your hand has been raised.”

When it is your turn to testify, you will hear, “Your line has been unmuted.”

State your name for the record, spell your last name and provide your testimony.

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CONSENT AGENDA

Items on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and non-controversial by the
Commission and will be approved by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of
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VI.

VII.

VIIIL.

these items unless a Commission Member so requests, in which case the item will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the agenda.

A. MINUTES
1. July 6, 2020 Minutes
2. July 20, 2020 Minutes

B. INTRODUCTION FOR PUBLIC HEARING: QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS

1. Resolution PC 20-27, A conditional use permit in accordance with MSB
17.70 — Regulation of Alcoholic Beverages Uses, for the operation of an
alcoholic beverage package store, located at 23471 S. Parks Hwy; (Tax ID
#7561000L001); within Township 26 North, Range 5 West, Section 29,
Seward Meridian. Public Hearing: August 17, 2020 (Applicant: Stephen
Mierop, dba Three Bears Alaska, Inc. Staff: Mark Whisenhunt).

2. Resolution PC 20-28, A modification of an existing Conditional Use
Permit in accordance with MSB 17.60 — Conditional Uses, for the
expansion of an existing junkyard/refuse area operation, located at 572 S.
Vine Road and 600 S. Vine Road (Tax ID # 6919000L002 &
6919000L001); within Township 17 North, Range 2 West, Section 10,
Seward Meridian. Public Hearing: August 17, 2020 (Applicant: Gerold
Jacobsen, dba Alaska Car Crushing, Staff: Mark Whisenhunt).

C. INTRODUCTION FOR PUBLIC HEARING: LEGISLATIVE MATTERS
(None)

COMMITTEE REPORTS
AGENCY/STAFF REPORTS

LAND USE CLASSIFICATIONS

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (three minutes per person, for items not scheduled for
public hearing)

PUBLIC HEARING: QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS (Public Hearings shall not begin
before 6:15 p.m.)

Commission members may not receive or engage in ex-parte contact with the applicant,
other parties interested in the application, or members of the public concerning the
application or issues presented in the application.

The Planning Commission members may submit questions to the Planning Commission
Clerk concerning the following matters or request for more information from the applicant
at the time of the introduction. All questions and requests submitted by the Commission
shall be in writing, and copies will be provided to the applicant and made available to all
interested parties and the public upon request. Answers to questions and additional
material requests will be addressed in the staff report for the public hearing.
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XI.

XII.

XII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

A. Resolution PC 20-26, A Conditional Use Permit in accordance with MSB 17.25
— Talkeetna Special Land Use District, for the operation of commercial storage
unit facility greater than 6,000 square feet in size, located at 26731 S. Talkeetna
Spur (Tax ID # 7909000L001); within Township 25 North, Range 4 West, Section
7, Seward Meridian (Applicant: Gilliland, dba Alaska Self Storage, Staff: Mark
Whisenhunt).

PUBLIC HEARING: LEGISLATIVE MATTERS

A. Resolution PC 20-12, recommending Assembly adoption of MSB 17.68, Outdoor
Shooting Facilities, in order to establish standards for commercial, educational, and
nonprofit outdoor shooting facilities (Staff: Alex Strawn).

CORRESPONDENCE & INFORMATION
UNFINISHED BUSINESS
NEW BUSINESS

COMMISSION BUSINESS
A. Adjudicatory
B. Upcoming Planning Commission Agenda Items (Staff: Alex Strawn)

DIRECTOR AND COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

ADJOURNMENT (Mandatory Midnight)

In order to be eligible to file an appeal from a decision of the Planning Commission, a
person must be designated an interested party. See MSB 15.39.010 for definition of
“Interested Party.” The procedures governing appeals to the Board of Adjustment &
Appeals are contained in MSB 15.39.010-250, which is available on the Borough Internet
home page, http://www.matsugov.us, in the Borough Clerk’s office, or at various libraries
within the Borough.

Disabled persons needing reasonable accommodation in order to participate at a Planning Commission
Meeting should contact the Borough ADA Coordinator at 861-8432 at least one week in advance of the meeting.
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020

The regular meeting of the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Planning Commission was held on July
6, 2020, at the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Assembly Chambers, 350 E. Dahlia Avenue, Palmer,
Alaska. The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by Chair Colleen Vague.

l. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM

Planning Commission members present and establishing a quorum:
Ms. Mary Anderson, Assembly District #1, Vice-Chair
Mr. Jason Ortiz, Assembly District #2
Ms. Patricia Chesbro, Assembly District #3
Ms. Colleen Vague, Assembly District #4, Chair
Mr. Chris Elder, Assembly District #5
Mr. Stafford Glashan, Assembly District #6 — remotely
Mr. Sassan Mossanen, Assembly District #7

Planning Commission members absent and excused were:

Staff in attendance:
Ms. Eileen Probasco, Planning Department Manager
Ms. Kim Sollien, Planning Services Manager
Ms. Shannon Bodolay, Assistant Borough Attorney
Mr. Mark Whisenhunt, Planner 11
Mr. Joseph Metzger, Planner Il
Mr. Emerson Krueger, Land Management Specialist
Ms. Karol Riese, Planning Commission Clerk

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Chair Vague inquired if there were any changes to the agenda.

GENERAL CONSENT: The agenda was approved without objection. Need public hearing
dates on introduction cases.

I1l.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The pledge of allegiance was led by Mr. Shapiro.

IV. CONSENT AGENDA

A Minutes
1. June 8, 2020, regular meeting minutes
2. June 15, 2020, regular meetig minutes

B. INTRODUCTION FOR PUBLIC HEARING: QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS
(There were no introductions for quasi-judicial matters.)

C. INTRODUCTION FOR PUBLIC HEARING: LEGISLATIVE MATTERS
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020
1. Resolution PC 20-23, a Resolution recommending Assembly approval of an

ordinance amending MSB 15.24.030(C), The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Lake
Management Plan, adopting MSB 17.59.063 Adoption and Amendment of
Regulations on Lakes; and MSB 17.59.065 Regulations on Lakes; and repealing
MSB 15.24.031 Initiating and Amending Lake Management Plans, MSB 17.58
Motorized Uses on Lakes and Waterways, and MSB 17.59.060 Limitation of Uses
in their entirety Public Hearing: July 20, 2020 (Staff: Eileen Probasco).

2. Resolution PC 20-24, a Resolution recommending Assembly approval of an
ordinance amending MSB 43.05.015(B)(3) to adopt the 2020 Subdivision
Construction Manual. Public Hearing: July 20, 2020 (Staff: Fred Wagner, Jamie
Taylor, and Eileen Probasco).

3. Resolution PC 20-25, a Resolution recommending Assembly approval of an
ordinance adopting MSB 11.12 Driveway Standards in order to ensure driveways
within borough right-of-ways minimize negative impact to drainage, maintenance,
and safety of the traveling public. Public Hearing: July 20, 2020 (Staff: Alex Strawn
and Jamie Taylor).

Chair Vague read the consent agenda into the record.

Chair Vague inquired if there were any changes to the consent agenda.

1. Move Introduction for Public Hearing: Legislative Matters C (1) Resolution 20-
23.
2. June 15, 2020 Minutes Commissioner Ortiz was present.

GENERAL CONSENT: The consent agenda was approved as amended without objection.

V.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

(There were no committee reports.)

VI.

AGENCY/STAFF REPORTS

(There were no agency/staff reports.)

VII.

LAND USE CLASSIFICATIONS

(There were no land use classifications.)

VIII.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (Three minutes per person.)

The following persons spoke regarding Lake Mangement Plan:
Patty Fischer, Esther Huddleston, Rick Taylor, Dan Hull, Travis Welton, Robert Yundt, Joel
Fuller, Jason Solsvig, James Mulhaney, Michelle LaRose, and Tabith Nardini.

The following person spoke regarding concerns with public process: Mr. Eugene Carl Haberman.

IX.

PUBLIC HEARING: QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS (Public Hearings not to begin
before 6:15 pm)
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020

Commission members may not receive or engage in ex-parte contact with the applicant, other
parties interested in the application, or members of the public concerning the application or issues
presented in the application.

A. Resolution PC 20-18, a request under MSB 17.65 Variances, for a variance from the 75-
foot shoreline setback requirement under MSB 17.55, located at 5782 S. Big Lake Road
(Tax ID# 6142000L006); within 17 North, Range 3 West, Section 29, Seward Meridian
(Applicant: Dennelle Seetomona on behalf of Janice Ellsworth, Staff: Joe Metzger).

Chair Vague read the resolution titles into the record.

Chair Vague:
o read the memorandum regarding potential quasi-judicial or ex-parte actions into the record.

Mr. Metzger provided a staff report:
o staff recommended approval of the resolution with conditions.

Commissioners questioned staff regarding:

o Was there a mandatory Land Use Permit applied for?

What plans were reviewed

Requirements in 1991 — same setback requirements

Lot to left owned by applicant; existing exemption for that structure

When did the applicant became aware they needed a variance; structure was completed at
that point

o Does the applicant have experience with construction

o Code requirements when obtained property

Chair Vague invited the applicant or their representative to provide an overview of their
application.

Ms. Dennelle Seetomona provided a statement regarding the allowable building area,

Commissioners questioned the applicant regarding:
J Experience with building
o Building on property to west

Chair Vague opened the public hearing.
(none)

There being no one to be heard, Chair VVague closed the public hearing and discussion moved to
the Planning Commission.

MOTION: Commissioner Elder moved to approve Resolution PC 20-18. The motion was
seconded.
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020

Commissioner Elder:
Small lot, existing cabin, built after they knew they were in violation of setback and decided
to go forward with it anyway. Therefore, | think that special condition that requires a
variance are not caused by the person seeking the variance is what | am going to hang my
hat on and I’m not going for this.

Commissioner Mossanen:
. You need to meet all the conditions.

Commissioner Anderson:

o | agree with Commissioner Elder. They purchased the property in 1991, there was a cabin
on it and they used it until it became unusable; regardless, even the builder should have
known that there was a 75 foot setback and should have advised them of that; just going
ahead a building something and asking forgiveness doesn’t guarantee it because one of the
things it says is that it is illegal to get a variance if there are conditions that were caused by
the person seeking the variance and the whole act of this building the house kindof made
the purpose of needing to have the variance. I’m just not comfortable moving forward with
this.

Commissioner Glashan:

o | agree with my fellow commissioners. | agree that the lot is small; but those easements
were there when they purchased the lot — there are lots that are unbuildable. It would have
been helpful to hear from the applicant and that the applicant didn’t own the adjacent
property that has similar conditions. | totally agree with the other commissioners and their
comments.

Commissioner Vague:

o There is a buildable spot on that lot — it wouldn’t be a very big one. I have a hard time,
these are really hard decisions to make, they had the ability to build a house. | get the
neighbors comments — there’s a junk cabin, and it is lowering your house value but what
the neighbors have built, the sizes of houses, none of that is relevant to the Borough
restrictions and the setbacks that are there for a reason. You build what you can build on
a lot that you have purchased. | am in agreement as well. 1 would have a really hard time
moving forward with this variance for those reasons.

VOTE: The main motion failed by a vote of 0-7.

B. Resolution PC 20-19, a Conditional Use Permit in accordance with MSB 17.60 —
Conditional Uses, for the operation of a marijuana cultivation facility, located at 2439 S.
Ridgecrest Road (Tax ID# 17N02W20B005); within Township 17 North, Range 2 East,
Section 20, Seward Meridian (Applicant: Heather Allen, on behalf of Bristol Bay Bud
Company, Staff: Joe Metzger).

Chair Vague read the resolution title into the record.

Chair Vague:
o read the memorandum regarding potential quasi-judicial or ex-parte actions into the record.
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020

Mr. Metzger provided a staff report:
o staff recommended approval of the resolution.

Commissioners questioned staff regarding:
o Could you refresh my memory for the setbacks on the side lot lines.
o You mentioned this is a residential use property.

Chair Vague invited the applicant or their representative to provide an overview of their
application.

Mr. Richard Allen, applicant, stated that he had nothing further to add and would answer questions.

Commissioners questioned the applicant regarding:

o How much commercial traffic do you expect to and from the facility?

o Page 346 of the packet, there is something called an as-built that is not stamped by a
surveyor, who actually did this?

o Can you give a further explanation with the driveway; it looks as though you have
permission from the neighbor to use their driveway.

o Could you elaborate more on what you meant as far as zero traffic?

Chair Vague opened the public hearing.

The following persons spoke in opposition of Resolution PC 20-19:

o Sam Hanson regarding odor and lack of support from AMCO.

o Travis Welton regarding odor, traffic, notices to be posted on property, and SOA policies.

o William Schulz regarding building of home around the facility, odor, and commercial
business in a residential area.

o Sherry Schulz regarding residential area and subdivision, cap on marijuana growth, odor,
and traffic.

o Dave Glenn regarding commercial operation in a residential area doesn’t fit.

o James White regarding traffic and odor.

o Walter Jackson regarding 600 feet notification limit — everyone should be notified, and

property values.

The following person spoke regarding concerns with the public process and marijuana facilities:
Mr. Eugene Carl Haberman.

Chair Vague invited staff to respond to questions and statements from the audience.

Mr. Metzger responded to questions and statements from members of the audience.

Mr. Metzger stated that they had nothing further to add.

Chair Vague invited the applicant to respond to questions and statements from the audience.

Mr. Allen stated that they had nothing further to add.
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020

There being no one else to be heard, Chair VVague closed the public hearing and discussion moved
to the Planning Commission.

MOTION:  Commissioner Chesbro moved to approve Resolution PC 20-19. The motion was
seconded.

Discussion ensued regarding:

Commissioner Chesbro:
o Appears the application is complete and meets all requirements of MSB Code.

Commissioner Mossanen:

o As Planning Commissioners we find ourselves in a difficult situation when there are
regulations and laws in place. These are not for us to interpret and as long as the application
meets the legal requirements that exist in law. We have to follow MSB Code

Commissioner Ortiz:

o | echo the same thing. | would encourage the public if there is a problem with the process,
I would contact your representative and follow that process to do it. | do empathize over
all those things, but you have to look at it from an appellate point of view; if something
were to happen on the legal side, the Commission has its hands tied on certain things.

o Remember, in the borough; there is no zoning — there is no such thing as residential
designated or commercial designated zoned lands. We regulate land use by conditional
use permit, and as long as the applicant has met all of those, we are bound to approve it.
We do not have zoning — we are stuck with what we have until we come up with something
better.

VOTE: The main motion passed without objection.

C. Resolution PC 20-20, a Conditional Use Permit in accordance with MSB 17.60 —
Conditional Uses, for the operation of a marijuana cultivation facility, located at 47265 S.
Brookestar’s Circle; (Tax ID# 22N04W01A004); within Township 22 North, Range 4
West, Section 01, Seward Meridian (Applicant: Kenneth Champ, of Arctic Hydroponics,
LLC, Staff: Mark Whisenhunt).

Chair Vague read the resolution title into the record.

Chair Vague:
o read the memorandum regarding potential quasi-judicial or ex-parte actions into the record.

Mr. Whisenhunt provided a staff report:
o staff recommended approval of the resolution.

Commissioners questioned staff regarding:
(none)
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020

Chair Vague invited the applicant or their representative to provide an overview of their
application.

Mr. Kenneth Champ, applicant, stated that he had nothing further to add and would answer
questions.

Commissioners questioned the applicant regarding:
o generator and air irrigation system in greenhouses

Chair Vague opened the public hearing.

The following person spoke regarding concerns with the public process: Mr. Eugene Carl
Haberman.

The following person spoke regarding concerns of the borough reputation, and applications will
keep coming: Terry Welton

Chair Vague invited staff to respond to questions and statements from the audience.

Mr. Whisenhunt stated that the wrong date for emailing to Susitna Community Council in the staff
report; it should be May 26, 2020.

Chair Vague invited the applicant to respond to questions and statements from the audience.
Mr. Champ stated that they had nothing further to add.

There being no one else to be heard, Chair Vague closed the public hearing and discussion moved
to the Planning Commission.

MOTION:  Commissioner Mossanen moved to approve Resolution PC 20-20. The motion was
seconded.

Discussion ensued regarding:

Commissioner Mossanen:

o As a representative for District 7, where this license is being applied for, the people in
District 7 voted on three separate occasions on cannabis. The last time this was voted on,
it passed by a 64% majority. The people in District 7 spoke pretty clearly on what
privileges they want themselves and their neighbors to have.

VOTE: The main motion passed without objection.
Recess — reconvene at 8:40 pm
D. Resolution PC 20-21, a Conditional Use Permit in accordance with MSB 17.30—

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for Earth Materials Extraction Activities, for the extraction
of approximately 407,300 cubic yards of earth material from a 19-acre site within two
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020

parcels totaling 160 acres, located within Township 17 North, Range 1 East, Sections 1&2,
Tax Parcels D21 & D5 (Tax ID# 17N01E02D021 & 17N01E01DO005); Seward Meridian
(Applicant: MSB Land Management Division, Staff: Mark Whisenhunt).

Chair Vague read the resolution titles into the record.

Chair Vague:
o read the memorandum regarding potential quasi-judicial or ex-parte actions into the record.

Mr. Whisenhunt provided a staff report:
o staff recommended approval of the resolution.

Commissioners questioned staff regarding:
(none)

Chair Vague invited the applicant or their representative to provide an overview of their
application.

Mr. Butch Shapiro, MSB Central Landfill Manager, applicant, provided an overview of their
application and would answer questions.

Commissioners questioned the applicant regarding:

o Commissioner Anderson: The contractor you had dropped out, and you are trying to find a
new contractor?

o Commissioner Glashan: | like end dates on these types of permits; would five (5) years be
okay, or would ten (10) years be better?

o Mr. Whisenhunt asked the Commission to make a correction on page 572 of the packet;

the hours of operation should start at 8:00 am (the 11 condition of Resolution 20-21).
Chair Vague opened the public hearing.

The following person spoke regarding concerns with the public process: Mr. Eugene Carl
Haberman.

Chair Vague invited staff to respond to questions and statements from the audience.
Mr. Whisenhunt stated that they had nothing further to add.

There being no one else to be heard, Chair Vague closed the public hearing and discussion moved
to the Planning Commission.

MOTION: Commissioner Anderson moved to approve Resolution PC 20-21. The motion was
seconded.

Discussion ensued regarding:

Commissioner Anderson;
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020
o This is an ongoing process that we have discussed a couple of different times at the

Planning Commission, and people have come in and testified numerous times about the
gravel extraction. | am pretty comfortable with them moving forward; it is just part of a
bigger plan moving cells or opening and closing other cells, and we can’t do that with
gravel in the way. | feel this is helping us to continue the process that we have already
discussed before.

o Time:

Commissioner Mossanen:

) I echo Commissioner Anderson’s statements, and if we can’t keep it out of there, then we

have to deal with it seems like the way to do it.

MOTION:  Commissioner Anderson moved a primary amendment that all extraction activity
associated with the permit shall be completed no later than December 31, 2030, and
correct hours of operation to begin at 8:00 am. The motion was seconded.

Commissioner Anderson:

o | believe giving an end out, lets the public know this is not going on forever; just makes it

clearer.

Commissioner Chesbro:

o | echo Commissioner Anderson’s comment.

VOTE: The primary amendment passed without objection.

VOTE: The main motion passed as amended without objection.

X. PUBLIC HEARING LEGISLATIVE MATTERS

(There were no legislative public hearings.)

XI. CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION

(There was no correspondence and information.)

XIl.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. Resolution PC 20-15, recommending Assembly approval of an ordinance amending the

Definition of Encroachment in MSB 11.10.010(A)(1) and amending MSB 17.23.150 Port
Development Permit Required (Staff: Alex Strawn and Emerson Krueger).
Chair Vague read the resolution titles into the record.

Mr. Krueger provided an update of what happened with the Port Commission:

Commissioners questioned staff regarding:
(none)
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020

Chair Vague opened the public hearing.

The following person spoke regarding concerns with the public process: Mr. Eugene Carl
Haberman.

There being no one else to be heard, Chair Vague closed the public hearing and discussion moved
to the Planning Commission.

MOTION:  Commissioner Chesbro moved to approve Resolution PC 20-15. The motion was
seconded.

Discussion ensued:

Commissioner Chesbro:
o | appreciate that we heard from the Port Commission.

Commissioner Mossanen:
o We had a specific request that was addressed.

VOTE: The main motion passed as amended without objection.

X1, NEW BUSINESS
(There was no new business.)

XIV. COMMISSION BUSINESS

A. Adjudicatory

a. Resolution PC 20-23, a Resolution recommending Assembly approval of an
ordinance amending MSB 15.24.030(C), The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Lake
Management Plan, adopting MSB 17.59.063 Adoption and Amendment of
Regulations on Lakes; and MSB 17.59.065 Regulations on Lakes; and repealing
MSB 15.24.031 Initiating and Amending Lake Management Plans, MSB 17.58
Motorized Uses on Lakes and Waterways, and MSB 17.59.060 Limitation of Uses
in their entirety (Staff: Eileen Probasco).

Commissioner Chesbro:

o | think that the public has the opportunity to balance the demands with the lake ecosystem.
| think that it is important to have a process that works well; T don’t think that is the only
thing the borough should think about. As I listened to testimony tonight, I don’t think the
document states not clearly describe what I thought was the intent to the changes to the
lake management system. | believe we should not deal with it at the next meeting, but we
should maybe reconceptualize the way this is written, so it makes more sense. Even as |
was reading it, and | have the background of listening to some of the things we have talked
about in the past, | was confused, and so | think that again as | heard the testimony this
evening, it needs another look to make clearer about what the intent of this is.

Commissioner Glashan:
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020

e It is not a prescriptive ordinance; based on the size of the lake, there can still be various
requirements based on the people that live around the lake, it just makes the overall process
more streamline. | think it is more people not understanding it then opposed to it.

Discussion ensued regarding more clarification of what would happen if denied, the pleasure of
the Commission, and public comment. Need time to repackage this and to educate the public about
the proposed changes; open houses; there are different scenarios when the shoreline is privately
owned.

MOTION:  Commissioner Chesbro moved to postpone PC Resolution 20-23 a Resolution
recommending Assembly approval of an ordinance amending MSB 15.24.030(C),
The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Lake Management Plan, adopting MSB
17.59.063 Adoption and Amendment of Regulations on Lakes; and MSB 17.59.065
Regulations on Lakes; and repealing MSB 15.24.031 Initiating and Amending Lake
Management Plans, MSB 17.58 Motorized Uses on Lakes and Waterways, and
MSB 17.59.060 Limitation of Uses in their entirety to January 2021. The motion
was seconded.

Discussion ensued regarding:

Commissioner Chesbro:
o | believe we need time to get information out and have meetings.

Commissioner Anderson:
o That makes the most sense. Each lake and neighborhood is different.

Commissioner Vague:
o Stay in contact with your planning members.

VOTE: The main motion passed without objection.

b. Resolution PC 20-29, (Denial of PC 20-18), adopting findings of fact and
conclusions of law supporting the denial of PC Resolution 20-18 concerning a
request for a variance from MSB 17.55 to allow an existing single family residence
to encroach into the required 75 foot waterbody setback at 5782 S. Big Lake Road
(Tax ID# 6142000L006); within township 17 North, Range 3 West, Section 29,
Seward Meridian.

Chair VVague read the resolution title into the record.
Mr. Strawn provided the Commission with an overview of the process.

Discussion ensued regarding the pleasure of the Commission — if they wanted to complete tonight
or compile and email findings of fact and conclusions of law to Clerk for a clean Resolution.

If the Commission makes a decision contrary to what is presented to them, it is the job of the
Commission to come up with the findings to support their action.
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 6, 2020

B.

A definitive moment with the findings of fact that they did not meet all the requirements
of an acceptable variance and specifically the situation arose from their own making.
Section 17.65.030 Cases where the variance is illegal contains three instances in
which a variance may NOT be granted which are:
1) special conditions that require the variance are caused by the person
seeking the variance;
2 the variance will permit a land use in a district in which that use is
prohibited;
3) the variance is sought solely to relieve pecuniary hardship or
inconvenience.
Provide all communications to the Clerk.
Commission agreed to postpone findings until the July 20, 2020 meeting.

Upcoming Planning Commission Agenda Items

Mr. Strawn provided a brief update on projects that will be coming before the Planning
Commission.

(Commission Business was presented, and no comments were noted.)

XV.

DIRECTOR AND COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

Ms. Bodolay: Reminder that the public testimony platform is largely developed to allow
people to testify. Caution to opening the door regarding dialogue about questions when
we have a packed room.

Ms. Probasco: | have one planning commission meeting left, maybe an assembly meeting
or two. | was hoping to get this Lake MP through, but that is okay. | am hoping you folks
are receptive to the construction manual that will be coming through your next meeting.
Ms. Sollien:  First meeting at the dais. | will be in Eileen’s seat at the next meeting. |
will work hard to support you.

Commissioner Elder: Welcome, Kim. Looking forward to the next couple of months.
Commissioner Anderson: ~ Thanked the public for coming out and for their testimony
and comments. Talked about the conditional use process; change comes at the Assembly
level; and encouraged everybody to continue to be active.

Commissioner Vague: Tonight was interesting. Talked about community members
getting involved before it is in their back yard; Commission being held to what the codes
are and that the quasi-judicial matters could end up in court; and change is made at the
Assembly level. Thank you to staff.

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes July 6, 2020 Page 12 of 13
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XVI. ADJOURNMENT

The regular meeting adjourned at 9:55 pm.

COLLEEN VAGUE, Planning Commission
Chair

ATTEST:

KAROL RIESE, Acting Planning Commission
Clerk

Minutes approved:

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes July 6, 2020 Page 13 of 13



Planning Commission August 3, 2020 Packet Page 20 of 398



Planning Commission

August 3, 2020 Packet

MINUTES
Jul 2 2020

(Page 21 - 30)

MINUTES

Page 21 of 398



Planning Commission August 3, 2020 Packet Page 22 of 398



Planning Commission August 3, 2020 Packet Page 23 of 398

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH REGULAR MEETING
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES July 20, 2020

The regular meeting of the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Planning Commission was held on July
20, 2020, at the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Assembly Chambers, 350 E. Dahlia Avenue, Palmer,
Alaska. The meeting was called to order at 6:03 p.m. by Vice-Chair Mary Anderson.

l. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM

Planning Commission members present and establishing a quorum:
Ms. Mary Anderson, Assembly District #1, Vice-Chair
Mr. Jason Ortiz, Assembly District #2
Ms. Patricia Chesbro, Assembly District #3
Mr. Chris Elder, Assembly District #5
Mr. Stafford Glashan, Assembly District #6, (Arrived @ 6:05 PM)
Mr. Sassan Mossanen, Assembly District #7

Planning Commission members absent and excused were:
Ms. Colleen Vague, Assembly District #4, Chair

Staff in attendance:
Ms. Eileen Probasco, Planning Department Manager
Mr. Alex Strawn, Development Services Manager
Ms. Kim Sollien, Planning Services Manager
Mr. John Aschenbrenner, Deputy Borough Attorney
Ms. Shannon Bodolay, Assistant Borough Attorney
Mr. Joseph Metzger, Planner 11
Mr. Theodore Eischeid, Planner Il
Ms. Karol Riese, Planning Commission Clerk

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Vice-Chair Anderson inquired if there were any changes to the agenda.
GENERAL CONSENT: The agenda was approved without objection.
I1l. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance was led by Mr. Eugene Carl Haberman.

IV. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Minutes
(None)

B. INTRODUCTION FOR PUBLIC HEARING: QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS

1. Resolution PC 20-26, a Conditional Use Permit in accordance with MSB 17.27 — Talkeetna
Special Land Use District, for the operation of a commercial storage unit facility greater
than 6,000 square feet in size, located at 26731 S. Talkeetna Spur (Tax ID #7909000L001);
within Township 25 North, Range 4 West, Section 7, Seward Meridian. Public Hearing:

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes July 20, 2020 Page 1 of 7
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August 3, 2020 (Applicant: John & Andrea Gilliland, dba Alaska Self Storage; Staff: Mark
Whisenhunt).

C. INTRODUCTION FOR PUBLIC HEARING: LEGISLATIVE MATTERS

1. Resolution PC 20-12, a resolution recommending Assembly adoption of MSB 17.68,
Outdoor Shooting Facilities, in order to establish standards for commercial, educational,
and nonprofit outdoor shooting facilities. Public Hearing: August 3, 2020 (Staff: Alex
Strawn).

Vice-Chair Anderson read the consent agenda into the record.

Vice-Chair Anderson inquired if there were any changes to the consent agenda.

GENERAL CONSENT: The consent agenda was approved as amended without objection.

V. COMMITTEE REPORTS

(There were no committee reports.)

VI. AGENCY/STAFF REPORTS

(There were no agency/staff reports.)

VII. LAND USE CLASSIFICATIONS

(There were no land use classifications.)

VIIl. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (Three minutes per person.)

The following persons spoke regarding spruce tree beetles and combining projects to help with
homeless & crime: Mr. Lee Huhnkie

The following persons spoke in favor of Reso 20-12 OutdoorShooting Facility: Dave Musgrave
(6:16 pm)

The following persons spoke regarding Reso 20-12 Outdoor Shooting Facility — Nuisance Noise
Level Limits: Mr. Norm Stout

The following person spoke regarding concerns with public process and shooting range public
hearing: Mr. Eugene Carl Haberman.

IX. PUBLIC HEARING: QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS (Public Hearings not to begin
before 6:15 P.M.)

Commission members may not receive or engage in ex-parte contact with the applicant, other
parties interested in the application, or members of the public concerning the application or issues
presented in the application.

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes July 20, 2020 Page 2 of 7
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(There were no quasi-judicial public hearings.)
X. PUBLIC HEARING LEGISLATIVE MATTERS

A. Resolution PC 20-24, a Resolution recommending Assembly approval of an ordinance
amending MSB 43.05.015(B)(3) to adopt the 2020 Subdivision Construction Manual
(Staff: Fred Wagner, Jamie Taylor, and Eileen Probasco).

Ms. Eileen Probasco provided a staff report:
o staff recommended approval of the resolution.

Commissioners questioned staff regarding:
o Commissioner Glashan: How does this fit into other planning documents? (Official Streets
and Highways Plan)

Vice-Chair Vague opened the public hearing.
The following person spoke regarding concerns with public process: Mr. Eugene Carl Haberman.
Vice-Chair Anderson invited staff to respond to questions and statements from the audience.

There being no one else to be heard, Vice-Chair Anderson closed the public hearing and discussion
moved to the Planning Commission.

MOTION:  Commissioner Elder moved to approve Resolution PC 20-24 The motion was
seconded.

Discussion ensued regarding:

Commissioner Elder: Supports the Subdivision Construction Manual; Over the last two and a half
years, | have taken several calls from different developers and private and public entities all in
favor of this. It was a long procedure that Ms. Probasco and Mr. Wagner oversaw, and they did
an excellent job. There is a variety of wide-spread approval of this in our Borough. Very well
written.

Commissioner: Chesbro: It appears that there is a lot of work, we have been updated on the
progress, it is complicated, and | am glad that there were a lot of experts working on this.

MOTION: Commissioner Chesbro moved a primary amendment that we add the following
language to the 2020 Subdivision Construction Manual” section C02.5 (e) to read as follows:

For Residential and Residential Subcollector standard roads, compact all embankment to not less
than 90 percent of the maximum dry density and the top 24 inches to not less than 95 percent of
the maximum dry density. For Residential Collector standard roads, compact all embankment to
not less than 98 percent of the maximum dry density and the top 24 inches to not less than 98
percent of the maximum dry density. Determine compaction in accordance with the Standard
Specifications for Highway Construction (ADOT&PF) and any MSB Standard Modifications.

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes July 20, 2020 Page 3 of 7
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Compaction tests on the subbase layer shall be taken at representative locations along the roadways
as follows:

The motion was seconded.

Discussion engaged:

Road Service Advisory Board and the Transportation Advisory Board resolutions; clarifying
changes and how to make them within the documents; 90 percent/95 percent/98 percent standards
— propose 95 percent for the entire thing.

Commissioner Glashan moved to amend the revision to the Subdivision Construction Manual to
change everything to 95 percent, see the following language to the 2020 Subdivision Construction
Manual” section C02.5 (e) to read as follows:

For Residential and Residential Subcollector standard roads, compact all embankment to not less
than 95 percent of the maximum dry density and the top 24 inches to not less than 95 percent of
the maximum dry density. For Residential Collector standard roads, compact all embankment to
not less than 95 percent of the maximum dry density and the top 24 inches to not less than 95
percent of the maximum dry density. Determine compaction in accordance with the Standard
Specifications for Highway Construction (ADOT&PF) and any MSB Standard Modifications.
Compaction tests on the subbase layer shall be taken at representative locations along the roadways
as follows:

The motion was seconded.

VOTE: The primary amendment passed without objection.
VOTE: The main motion passed as amended without objection.
B. Resolution PC 20-25, a Resolution recommending Assembly approval of an ordinance

adopting MSB 11.12 Driveway Standards in order to ensure driveways within borough
right-of-ways minimize negative impact to drainage, maintenance, and safety of the
traveling public (Staff: Alex Strawn and Jamie Taylor).

Mr. Alex Strawn provided a staff report:
o staff recommended approval of the resolution.

Vice-Chair Anderson opened the public hearing.

The following person spoke regarding concerns with the public process: Mr. Eugene Carl
Haberman.

The following person spoke regarding Mr. Habersman’s comment, in the calendar, you see the
meeting, possible links to documents, easy to read, and there being experts reviewing and
approving: Mr. Lee Huhnkie.

Vice-Chair Anderson invited staff to respond to questions and statements from the audience.

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes July 20, 2020 Page 4 of 7
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There being no one else to be heard, Vice-Chair Anderson closed the public hearing and discussion
moved to the Planning Commission.

MOTION:  Commissioner Chesbro moved to approve Resolution PC 20-25. The motion was
seconded.

MOTION:  Commissioner Chesbro moved an amended motion to adopt the recommendations
by staff as related to the Transportation Advisory Board minus the disproportionate
cost section. The motion was seconded.

VOTE: The amended motion passed without objection.
XI. CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION
(There was no correspondence and information.)

XIl.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS

(There was no unfinished business.)

X111, NEW BUSINESS

(There was no new business.)

XIV. COMMISSION BUSINESS

A. Adjudicatory (if needed)

1. Resolution 20-29, a Resolution of the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Planning
Commission adopting findings of fact and conclusions of law supporting the denial
of PC Resolution 20-18 concerning a request for a variance from MSB 17.55 to
allow an existing single family residence to encroach into the required 75 foot
waterbody setback at 5782 S. Big Lake Road (Tax ID# 6142000L006); within
township 17 North, Range 3 West, Section 29 Seward Meridian (Applicant:
Dennelle Seetomona on behalf of Janice Ellsworth, Staff: Joe Metzger).

MOTION:  Commissioner Chesbro moved to approve Resolution PC 20-29. The motion was
seconded.

MOTION:  Commissioner Ortiz moved a primary amendment to Section 2 to remove
everything from (see attachment C). “The commission finds that the special
conditions that require the variance were partially the fault of the applicant, due to
the fact that they knew the lot had setback challenges but chose to build the house
without contacting the borough.” The motion was seconded.

Discussion ensued regarding the wording of the motion.

MOTION:  Commissioner Chesbro moved to amend the primary amendment to Section 2 to
remove “partially” rather than the entire sentence. The motion was seconded.

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes July 20, 2020 Page 5 of 7
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VOTE: The primary amendment passed without objection.

MOTION:  Commissioner Ortiz moved an amendment to Section 3 to remove “Had the
applicants contacted the borough prior to construction, they may have received
better information on the implications of constructing the home they were
proposing, and chosen a design that would not have encroached so much into the
waterbody setback.” The motion was seconded.

The section would read as follows:

“The applicant alleges that the condition is not applicable since the homeowners
are under no financial hardships nor did they build the home as contractors to re-
sell. The commission finds that the applicant knew they were taking a risk in
building the house they chose prior to contacting the borough, and to resolve the
setback violation after the fact could indeed have a pecuniary impact, such as
having to remodel the home to lessen the violation or not being able to obtain bank
financing.”

VOTE: The amendment passed without objection.

MOTION:  Commissioner Ortiz moved to correct a typographical error in the third WHEREAS
to reflect 17.55.020. The motion was seconded.

VOTE: The amendment passed without objection.
VOTE: The motion passed as amended without objection.
B. Upcoming Planning Commission Agenda ltems

Mr. Strawn provided a brief update on projects that will be coming before the Planning
Commission.

(Commission Business was presented, and no comments were noted.)
XV. DIRECTOR AND COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

Ms. Probasco: Thanked the commissioners for their commitment to the job they have; sometimes
it is really difficult, sometimes it goes through rather smoothly, but we have really tried hard over
the years to give you the information you need, | appreciate your respect for us and you contacting
us when you have questions. This is my last meeting, | have nine more days until I am officially
on the retired list; not leaving the state just taking it easy for a while. Thank you for approving
our driveway standards and construction manual, we will be taking them to the Assembly in
August. | will be in attendance at those meetings as a taxpayer. Thanks again.

Mr. Strawn: Last meeting with Eileen Probasco — her leadership has been much appreciated, and
she will be missed.

Commissioner Glashan: We must be wearing the staff out this year, another one we are going to
miss. | believe the developers will howl a little bit about the 95% everywhere. | think
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accommodating the 90% for the residential roads for below the structural section is a reasonable
accommodation. | think you did a great job on it, and it was much overdue.

Commissioner Chesbro: Thank you to Ms. Probasco, this has been a hard job in a borough that
wants everything to be planned except for what is next to them. This is kind of a difficult place
sometimes, and | appreciate everything that you do.

Commissioner Elder: Thanked Eileen Probasco and her professionalism — she will be missed.

Commissioner Mossanen: Three cheers for you, Eileen, it has been great working with you. |
hope you have a great retirement. Thank you, Ms. Bodolay, for your comments in our last meeting.

Commissioner Ortiz: I hope you sail off into retirement. I know you didn’t get everything that
you wanted to get accomplished, but you sure did knock a lot out. Great work on the Subdivision
Construction Manual and Driveway Ordinance — you guys and staff did great. Enjoy your
retirement, and maybe | will see you at the lake.

Commissioner Anderson: Thank you to all the Commissioners and staff. Working through
different things are not always easy. Thankful for staff who brings things to us in an understandable
manner. We will miss Eileen and her leadership. We have seen a lot of changes, but we do

welcome the new staff members that are coming aboard, and we feel that they will also continue
to carry it forward and move us in a positive direction. Next meeting is August 3"

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

The regular meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m.

MARY ANDERSON, Planning Commission
Vice-Chair

ATTEST:

KAROL RIESE, Planning Commission Clerk

Minutes approved:
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INTRODUCTION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
QUASI-JUDICIAL

Resolution No. PC 20-277
SStephen Bierop, dba

Three Bears Alaska, Inc.In.

(Page 31 - 46)

INTRODUCTION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
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R
THREE BEARS ALASKA, INC. 19 2020

Application for Conditional Use Permit
Regulation of Alcoholic Beverage Uses — MSB 17.70

Basic Information (Questions 1 — 13)

1. Yes. The package store is being added on to an existing commercial building. The new
package store is a commercial use that is compatible with the surrounding area and is part of a
number of upgrades being made to the existing building and property. These upgrades will add
value to the surrounding area by modernizing the community’s primary store, modernizing one
of the community’s two fuel stations, and adding a brand new and totally modern package store.

2. No. The types of products being offered are already available in at least one other location in
the community. Our new package store will simply be another location from which Borough
residents and visitors may choose to obtain these products. Additionally, long before “carding
hard” was required anywhere in the State, we have always (for over 20 years) required customers
to show us a valid ID showing that they are 21 or older. Further—and again for over 20 years—
our register system has been and is designed such that a transaction to purchase alcohol cannot
be completed without a valid birthdate being entered. All of our cashiers who handle alcohol
transactions receive all training and certificates required by all applicable State and local laws
and regulations. Among other things, such training includes how to detect invalid IDs, how to
properly deal with minors who attempt to enter the premises, and how to deal with and NOT sell
alcohol products to intoxicated persons.

3. Yes. Please see the related survey and plan set.

4. No. Paved and gravel areas will prevent and control dust. Noise will be no more than already
present from current traffic and commercial activity in the area. Advertising will be the same as
at our other stores in the Borough and will be non-obtrusive. Lighting will be the same as at
similar locations we currently operate in the Borough.

5. No. We are doing nothing that will change existing traffic patterns or flows or access to and
from the property.

6. The package store is a relatively minor addition on the south side of a large existing building.
This side of the building faces parking on the property itself, and the adjacent property to the
south is an airstrip. Further, the package store addition will only have one story above ground
level, which means that it will be shorter than the rest of the building and thus relatively
unobtrusive. The addition was designed by a local registered architect and local registered
engineers and is designed to blend in with the existing building which itself has been part of the
community since the 1980s. We are not adding any signage. Rather, we are just adding our
name (usually shortened to just “Three Bears”) to some of the existing signage. Other than two
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or three wall-mounted downward directional and shielded light fixtures, we are not adding any
other lighting in connection with the addition of the package store. Further, all of the lighting
that is yet to come with the relocated fuel station is downward directed, shielded, and otherwise
designed to minimize light spillage.

7. Yes. There will be adequate on-site parking. Further, we are removing all parking spaces
that were previously located within the State right of way and we are adding additional parking
spaces elsewhere on the property such that we have sufficient parking. (Please see site plan.

8. No. The project is a small addition to a long-established commercial property in the
community and will not present any unusual traffic patterns.

9. No. The project is not the type to increase overall traffic on the existing road system.

Further, based on conversations and correspondence with AK DOT in December 2019, we
believe that our existing access to the Parks Highway is more than adequate. Also, because DOT
was not able to locate the original driveway permits for this location and because of this
Application for Conditional Use Permit and our upcoming construction of the relocated fuel
station, we are in the process of getting new driveway permits from DOT for this location. It
should be noted that some DOT personnel believed they recalled being involved with the original
driveway permits, but still, no one could locate them. We believe that we will continue to have
direct and adequate access to the Parks Highway.

10. Yes. In some ways, the store that Three Bears has acquired and is modernizing has been—
literally for decades—a major part of what people think of as “the neighborhood” in Trapper
Creek. And Three Bears has a long and deep history of operating stores in communities
throughout Alaska and of tailoring our stores to each individual community.

11. No. The project will contain a package store along with a convenience store and fuel
station. We card every single package store customer and every single tobacco/nicotine product
customer.

12. No.
13. No.

Supplemental Information (ltems 1 —7)

1. 51 for the package store (per Fire Marshal’s required formula/calculation)
2.5
3. 10

4. 1
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5. Three Bears Alaska, Inc. is the sole occupant of the building, but the use is a partial use (the
rest of the building contains a convenience store, a laundromat, showers, and rooms for lodging)

6. 1,450

7. The package store will operate from 9:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. during summer/high season and
potentially shorter hours during the rest of year

8. The very low amount of noise generated by a project like this is generally not sufficient to
require mitigation.
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INTRODUCTION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
QUASI-JUDICIAL

Resolution No. PC 20-28

Gerold Jacobsen dba
Alaska Car Crushing

(Page 47 - 64)

INTRODUCTION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH

Planning and Land Use Department
Development Services Division
350 East Dahlia Avenue ¢ Palmer, AK 99645
Phone (907) 861-7822  Fax (907) 861-7876
Email: permitcenter@matsugov.us

APPLICATION FOR A JUNKYARD CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT - MSB 17.60

Carefully read instructions and applicable borough code. Fill out forms completely.
Attach information as needed. Incomplete applications will not be processed.

R
Application fee must be attached:
____$1,000 for Junkyard Conditional Use Permit 5-13-2020
Prior to the public hearing, the applicant must also pay the mailing and advertising
fees associated with the application. Applicants will be provided with a statement of
advertising and mailing charges. Payment must be made prior to the application
presentation before the Borough Planning Commission.

Subject Property Township: __ 17N_, Range: _02 -, Section: _10 ,
Meridian_S _

MSB Account # _ 6919000L001 L002 A
SUBDIVISION: _C C F ___ BLOCK(S): , LOT(S): '
STREETADDRESS: _ 600 S Road

Ownership A written authorization by the owner must be attached for an agent or contact person, if
the owner is using one for the application. Is authorization attached? XYes oNo o N/A

o NN
& UZ

Name of Property Owner Name of Agent/ Contact for application
3 G o Rebecca Powell / Terry Nicodemus
Address: O 875188 Address:

. A 99687

Phne: Hm Fax_373-8375___ Phone:Terry_376-8800_ Cell _232-6922
Wk__357-5865___ Cell Rebecca_232-0992

E-mail _ - E-mail _rebecca@akcbs.net

In order to grant a conditional use permit under MSB 17.60, the Planning Attached
Commission must find that each of the following requirements have been
met. Explain the following in detail:

1. Is the conditional use compatible with and will it preserve or not materially
detract from the value, character and integrity of the surrounding area?

2. Will the granting of the conditional use permit be harmful to the public Yes
health, safety, convenience and welfare?

3. Are sufficient setbacks, lot area, buffers and other safeguards being provided?  Yes
4. Does the conditional use fulfill all other requirements of MSB Chapter 17.60
pertaining to the conditional use in this section?

Revised 7/1/2015 Permit# 176020190003 Page 1 of 3

Yes

Yes
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Supplemental Information — Explain in Detail Attached
1. Number of employees proposed to work on largest work shift Yes
2. Hours of operation Yes
3. Noise mitigation measures Yes
4. How will contaminated materials be handled and disposed of at this site? Yes
5. Total square footage or acreage of this property Yes
6. Total square footage or acreage for this use on this site Yes

7. Are there other existing or proposed uses on this site or will this
operation be the sole use of the property? If there are other uses on this Yes
property, provide a description.

8. Use(s) of any proposed building(s) associated with this operation Yes

9. Copy of Hazardous Material Plan for the operation, if applicable Yes

10. Type of equipment to be used at this site Yes

11. What type of containment systems will be in place at this site? Yes

12. What type of non-permeable surface will be in place at this site? Yes

13. What will be the daily traffic generation for this use? Yes

14. Attach a written description of the buffering that will be provided at this
site to meet the standards in 17.60.110. This may include conventional | vyeg
solid wood or metal fencing; evergreen or other natural planting
sufficient to provide year-round screening; and earthen berm or
topography.

SITE PLAN — Attach a detailed, to scale, site plan clearly showing the Attached
following information:

1. Proposed and existing structure(s) on the site. Indicate which
structure(s) will be used for this use. Draw lot dimensions and indicate Yes
setback distance of structure(s) from the lot lines, rights-of-way, and
waterbodies.

2. Dimensions of all structures Yes

3. Location of the use or uses to be made of the development Yes

4. Location of other uses on the site Yes

5. Signage — Existing and Proposed Yes

6. Location and dimensions for all access points to and from the site to Yes
public rights-of-way or public access easements

7. Buffering — Fences, trees, topography or berms Yes

8. Drainage Yes
9. Vehicular and pedestrian circulation patterns Yes
10. Exterior site lighting Yes
11. Location and dimensions of parking areas to be provided Yes
12. Location of other uses on the site Yes
13. Scale and north arrow Yes

Revised 7/1/2015 Permit# 176020190003

Page 2 of 3
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OWNER'S STATEMENT: | am owner of the following property:

MSB Tax parcel ID #(s) 209267 and 509263 and,
| hereby apply for approval a junkyard conditional use permit on that property as described in this
application.

I understand all activity must be conducted in compliance with all applicable standards of MSB 17.60 and
with all other applicable borough, state or federal laws.

I understand that other rules such as local, state and federal regulations, covenants, plat notes, and deed
restrictions may be applicable and other permits or authorization may be required. | understand that the
borough may also impose conditions and safeguards designed to protect the public’s health, safety and
welfare and ensure the compatibility of the use with other adjacent uses.

I understand that it is my responsibility to identify and comply with all applicable rules and conditions,
covenants, plat notes, and deed restrictions, including changes that may occur in such requirements.

I understand that this permit and zoning status may transfer to subsequent owners of this land and that it is
my responsibility to disclose the requirements of this status to the buyer when | sell the land.

| understand that changes from the approved conditional use permit may require further authorization by
the Borough Planning Commission. | understand that failure to provide applicable documentation of
compliance with approved requirements, or violation of such requirements will nullify legal status, and
may result in penalties.

I grant permission for borough staff members to enter onto the property as needed to process this
application and monitor compliance. Such access will at a minimum, be allowed when the activity is
occurring and, with prior notice, at other times necessary to monitor compliance.

The information submitted in this application is accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge.

Garold Jacobsen 02/05/2019
Signature: Property Owner Printed Name Date

Rebecca Powell 04/20/2020
Signature: Agent Printed Name Date

Revised 7/1/2015 Permit# 176020190003 Page 3 of 3
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AK Car Crushing & Recycling LLC

PO Box 875188 Received on
5-13-2020
Wasilla, AK 99687

04/17/2020
RE: Mat-Su Conditional Use Permit

|, Garold Jacobsen, owner and member of AK Car Crushing & Recycling LLC give permission to
talk and/or provide information or additional documentation for the conditional use permit #
176020190003 to the following agents:

Rebecca Powell —907-232-0992 or rebecca@akcbs.net

Terry Nicodemus — 907-376-8800 office 907-232-6922 cell or terry@acuteksurvey,com

Sincerely,

Garold Jacobsen


mailto:rebecca@akcbs.net
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Received on
5-13-2020



Planning Commission August 3, 2020 Packet Page 54 of 398



Planning Commission August 3, 2020 Packet Page 55 of 398

Conditional Use Permit R

Narrative 6-15-2020
Alaska Car Crushing & Recycling LLC

Supplemental Information

1. Number of employees proposed to work on largest work shift
Summer One supervisor and 6 employees
Winter one supervisor and 3 employees

2. Hours of operation
Summer hours one shift from 9 am to 6 pm Monday thru Saturday
Winter hours one shift from 10 am to 5 pm Monday thru Friday

3. Noise mitigation measures
The noisiest equipment on the property is the car crusher, it will not be utilized after 5 pm and
not on the weekends. The property is entirely surrounded by industrial, commercial or
undeveloped property. There has not been any formal complaints concerning excessive noise
from Alaska Car Crushing's operations.

4. How will contaminated materials be handled and disposed of at the site.
All the contaminated materials that are on the property come from the derelict vehicles that are
stored on site for recycling and scraping. When a vehicle first comes in it is drained of all fluids
in the covered pole barn on the north side of the yard. Batteries are removed and stored in a
secure connex for recycling. Fuel is collected and put in fifty gallon barrels for use in the yard.
Oil, coolants and lubricants are drained and put into separate barrels for storage until NRC
Alaska picks up for disposition. There is an EPA approved spill kit on site for vehicles that are
impounded or stored, all yard employees are trained on how to utilize it.

5. Total square footage or acreage of this property
400,212 square feet or 9.19 acres

6. Total square feet or acreage for this use on this site
336,853 square feet or 7.73 acres

7. Are there other existing or proposed uses on this site or will this operation be the sole

use of the property?

If there are other uses on this property, provide a description.
Alaska Car Crushing(ACC) operates on Lots 1 & 2, Car Crushing Flats Plat #2009-86, 572 &
600 S Vine Road. There are multiple uses of this property. It is a automobile and truck
recycling Operation, a police impound compound, scrap metal storage yard, and a
derelict/abandoned automobile and truck storage/salvage yard.
Automobile and Truck Recycling Operation-All vehicles are drained of all fluids in the pole
barn with concrete floor with a collection apparatus', the Iron Ax drain racks. The vehicles are
then stored in the yard for customer self service parts salvage. Once the vehicle has
relinquished mostly all it's recyclable parts it will be crushed and or bailed and stored in the
scrap yard.

Police Impound Compound- ACC is set up with a fenced impound lots along with two
Page 1 of 3

wreckers to service the law enforcement community. Two additional Wrecking companies:
Metal-In-Motion LLC and All In One LLC. Which all three companies service the law
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enforcement and the Mat-Su Borough communities.
Scrap Metal Processing and Storage- ACC processes and excepts from the public scrap metal
of all kinds. If the price for scrap metal is advantageous it is then sold. If the price is not
advantageous to sell it is stored for the long term. The commercial scales are to weigh
incoming scrap metals and scrap processed on site for future disposition.
Derelict / Abandoned Automobile and Truck Storage/Salvage Yard- ACC will pick up from the
public any vehicle for a fee and has had in the past will in the future have a contract with the
Matanuska-Susitna to pick up abandoned vehicles in the public right of way.

8. Uses(s) of any proposed building(s) asscociated with this operation
There are three buildings on the property a pole barn, a shop and a office with garage.
Pole Barn with concrete containment floor-used to prepare vehicles by all removing fluids,
batteries and lubricants
Shop-Maintenance of company equipment is preformed in this building
Office With Garage- Administration is conducted for company and some company vehicles are
stabled in the adjoining garage.

9. Copy of Hazardous Material Plan for the operation, if applicable
See attached Hazardous Material Plan

10. Type of equipment to be used at the site
Two Balers
Two Track Excavators
Crusher
Two Fork Lifts
Drain Rack
Two Wreckers

11. What type of containment systems will be in place at this site?
Vehicles that are impounded are inspected for fluid leaks before they are stored. If a leak is
discovered spill pads are utilized, if extensive it is brought to the pole barn and put on our drain
rack. A spill in the pole barn would be contained by the concrete containment floor. Because
most all vehicles do have small leaks there is ba bio-wale and containment berm along the east
property line to provide that no pollutants migrates off property.

12. What type of non-permeable surface will be in place at this site?
The pole barn with it's non-permeable concrete containment floor is in place to backup any
possible spills that might get away from the Iron Ax drain system. Hazardous fluids and
materials are removed from the vehicles, fluids are placed in 55 gallon drums for removal and
processing for NRC Alaska from Anchorage, Alaska to pick up, batteries are stored in a connex
for recycling.

13. What will be the daily traffic generation for this use?
In the winter, the average visits from the public amount to two. In the summer, the average

visits from the public is 10 to 12. There is approximately 7.5 wrecker visits on
Page 2 of 3

average a day.

14. Attach a written description of the buffering that will be provided at this site to meet the
standards in 17.60.110.
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Existing on site, encompassing the entire impounding/recycling/wrecking facility there is a
eight feet tall chainlink security fence. The description of said fence is six feet wide chainlink
fabric with two foot vertical arms that accommodate three strains of barb wire. The police
impound compounds are located along the front of the property and are in full view of S Vine
Road a requirement for impound storage. All the scrap metal and junk vehicle storage are
behind the police impound areas and Retail/Office, they will be screened by solid wood or
metal fencing.

Crowley Petroleum Distribution occupies the property north of the wrecking yard it supplies
heating oil, propane, diesel, gasoline and lubricants to residents and commercial businesses in
Wasilla and the Matanuska and Susitna Valley. Crowley also offers bulk propane and tank re-
fill on site as well as bulk delivery and drummed aviation fuels. They also have a
Retail/Convenience store on the property.

West of the recycling facility is an undeveloped 10 acre tract of land.
The property to the south there is 4 one acre lots it appears all four lots are being used for
commercial/industrial uses. There could be views to the property from W Full Curl Avenue but

this is mitigated by a buffer of trees along the southern portion of the recycling lot.

With all cases we will monitor the buffering and if additional screening is required we
will not hesitate to correct the situation.
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Received on
6-15-2020

5/19/2020
5/19/2020
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AK CAR CRUSHING & RECYCLING LLC

PO BOX 875188
WASILLA, ALASKA 99687
Received on
5-13-2020
572 S VINE ROAD (YARD)
Wasilla, Alaska

Hazardous Materials Work Plan

February 06, 2020
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Section B:
Hazardous Material Removal
Procedures

Part 1: (1.8.3(a) Work area set-up and protection.
AK Car Crushing & Recycling LLC will be doing the hazard removal of vehicle
oil, fuel antifreeze and batteries, during the operation of such tasks, AK CAR
CRUSHING & RECYCLING LLC will notify the yard supervisor prior to work
commencing. AK CAR CRUSHING & RECYCLING LLC will establish a
demarcated work area, allowing Authorized personnel in the work area duration
of the work being completed. Containers will be provided for the storage of
materials being removed accumulated; these containers will be stored at a
designated site. All work procedures will follow 40 CFR 260 thru 263 and 40
CFR 279

Part 2: Worker protection and decontamination
To provide ultimate safety to the employees performing work with the removal
of oil, fuel antifreeze and batteries, AK Car Crushing & Recycling LLC will
perform the following procedures. First, we will make sure that all the following
employees wear the appropriate clothing, such as leather gloves, boots, eye
protection and safety vests, which will be appropriate for the job.
Decontamination will be in the following manner. First, remove battery from
vehicle and place in approve recycling location. Second, place vehicle on
approved drain racks. Third, drain oil, fuel and antifreeze into separate 55-gal
drums. Forth, place vehicle in staging area to be crushed.

Part 3 Vehicle battery removal
The Vehicle battery is removed from the vehicle and placed upright in a Conex
for recycling. The yard employees make sure the batteries are stacked upright to
prevent leakage. The supervisor inspects daily and makes sure all batteries are
secure. Shrink wrap is used to prevent any falling of batteries prior to shipping
out containers to the lower 48 for recycling.

Part 4: Vehicle fluid removal procedures.
The following material, tools, and equipment may be needed for the process of
removal of oil, fuel and antifreeze, an onsite assessment will be completed for all
tools, materials equipment needed.
1. 3 -55-gallon open top barrel with lock ring
2. Gloves, Boots and Vest
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3. Safety Glasses

4. Electric wire cutters
5. Battery powered drill
6. label for barrels

7. Spill kits

The following procedures will be followed to remove fluids:

1. A walk around the vehicle to check for any metal or other objects that may
affect the process of removing fluids is conducted

2. The supervisor uses the front end loaded with forks to pick up the vehicle
and place on EPA approved racks

3. The supervisor makes sure it is on the racks properly and safe for fluid

draining

Yard employee starts the process of draining the fluids into separate 55-

gal drum via the drain rack.

. The drums are label appropriately

Once the process is complete, the vehicle is removed by the supervisor

and loader and placed in staging area

7. Once in staging area, the vehicle is either crushed and recycled or stored
for parts

8. EPA approved Spill kits and disposal drum are located by the EPA
approved drain racks

9. Inspections will be done daily and noted on site and any spill records.

10. To prevent accidental exposure of workers draining fluids, the following
safety precautions will be taken: Employees will wear protective clothing,
including eye protection, gloves and boots; it will be ensured that the area
of draining fluids is well ventilated to minimize the potential risk for
breathing in fumes. Some of the warning signs of exposure include
irritation of the eyes, nose, and throat. Below are some safety practices
that will be follow if accidental exposure occurs:

a) Eye Contact - immediately flush with large amounts of water for at
least 15 minutes, occasionally lifting upper and lower lids.

b) Skin Contact - remove contaminated clothing and immediately
wash contaminated skin with large amounts of soap and water.
Contaminated clothing must be disposed as waste.

c) Breathing Issues - removal of the person from the area and call 911
for immediate ambulance assistance and transport to the emergency
room.

11. Hygiene Practices - Hand washing with soap and water before each break
and leaving at end of day. There also will be a separate area for eating and
drinking, this area will be designated in the shop or office.

=

o Ul
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Part 9: Waste handling, packaging labeling and manifesting procedures:

All materials handled by AK CAR CRUSHING & RECYCLING LLC will
be properly stored/packaged/labeled and shipped out to facilities where
the waste is accepted for proper disposal, or reprocessing. Along with this,
AK CAR CRUSHING & RECYCLING LLC will provide the
manifests/receipts of all the materials being removed this includes oil and
antifreeze, and other equipment possibly collected at the jobsite. AK CAR
CRUSHING & RECYCLING LLC will store materials in a containment
area that is properly marked onsite until proper pick up of contaminated
waste. AK CAR CRUSHING & RECYCLING LLC will coordinate with
waste facilities for prompt pickup of waste. NRC Alaska LLC will
provide transport and waste disposal as soon as waste is available for
pick-up.

Disposal Site and Transporter:

NRC Alaska LLC

619 East Ship Creek Ave. Anchorage, AK 99501
(907) 257-1558

24 /7 /365 Spill Response (877)375-5040
WWWw.nrcc,com

Part 10: Certification of Work Plan
The careful application of the preceding work plan will accomplish the goals as
set forth in the Statement of Purpose in compliance with applicable State, Federal
and Local regulations and requirements set forth by EPA and OSHA. The
Supervisor may, at their discretion, revise work practice and procedures if all
Federal, State and Local requirements are met and meets EPA and OSHA
guidelines.

04/17/2020
Project Designer Signature Date
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ALASKA SELF STORAGE

(Page 65 - 140)
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH
Planning and Land Use Department
350 East Dahlia Avenue ¢ Palmer, AK 99645
Phone (907) 861-7833 » Fax (907) 861-7876
Email: planning@matsugov.us

MEMORANDUM

DATE: July 24, 2020

TO: Planning Commissioners

FROM: Eileen Probasco, Director of Planning and Land Use

SUBJECT: Items tentatively scheduled for future PC Meetings or Administrative Actions and
Updates on PC items sent to the Assembly

August 17, 2020 (MSB Assembly Chambers)

Introduction for Public Hearing Quasi-Judicial

. Resolution 18-30, a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in accordance with MSB 17.60
— Conditional Uses; allowing the operation of a junkyard/refuse area, located at 743
West Sunrise Drive (Tax ID#: 640500L006); within Township 18 North, Range 2
West, Section 33, Seward Meridian. Alaska Superior Court has issued an order
remanding this item back to the Planning Commission. Public Hearing: September
21, 2020 (Applicant: Dewayne Creech for Creech’s Junkyard, Staff: Mark
Whisenhunt).

Introduction for Public Hearing Legislative
. Resolution PC 20-22, Recommending Assembly adoption of MSB 17.31 Wetlands
Management. Public Hearing: September 21, 2020 (Staff: Ted Eischeid).

Agency/Staff Reports
. Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) and The Official Streets and Highways
Plan (OSHP) Presentations (Staff: Kim Sollien).
o Wetlands Management Presentation (if needed) (Staff: Ted Eischeid)

Land Use Classifications
(None)

Public Hearing Quasi-Judicial
o Resolution PC 20-27, A conditional use permit in accordance with MSB 17.70 —
Regulation of Alcoholic Beverages Uses, for the operation of an alcoholic beverage
package store, located at 23471 S. Parks Hwy; Tax ID #7561000L001; within
Township 26 North, Range 5 West, Section 29, Seward Meridian (Applicant:
Stephen Mierop, dba Three Bears Alaska, Inc. Staff: Mark Whisenhunt).
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o Resolution PC 20-28, A modification of an existing Conditional Use Permit in
accordance with MSB 17.60 — Conditional Uses, for the expansion of an existing
junkyard/refuse area operation, located at 572 S. Vine Road and 600 S. Vine Road
(Tax ID # 6919000L002 & 6919000L001); within Township 17 North, Range 2
West, Section 10, Seward Meridian (Applicant: Gerold Jacobsen, dba Alaska Car

Crushing).

Public Hearing Legislative
(None)

Unfinished Business
(None)

New Business
(None)

Commission Business
. Adjudicatory (if needed)
. Upcoming Planning Commission Agenda Items (Staff: Alex Strawn)

September 21, 2020 (MSB Assembly Chambers)

Introduction for Public Hearing Quasi-Judicial
(None)

Introduction for Public Hearing Legislative
(None)

Agency/Staff Reports
. Borough-wide Comprehensive Plan Presentation. (Staff: Kim Sollien)

Land Use Classifications
(None)

Public Hearing Quasi-Judicial
o Resolution 18-30, a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in accordance with MSB 17.60
— Conditional Uses; allowing the operation of a junkyard/refuse area, located at 743
West Sunrise Drive (Tax ID#: 640500L006); within Township 18 North, Range 2
West, Section 33, Seward Meridian. Alaska Superior Court has issued an order
remanding this item back to the Planning Commission. (Applicant: Dewayne
Creech for Creech’s Junkyard, Staff: Mark Whisenhunt).

Public Hearing Legislative
o Resolution PC 20-22, Recommending Assembly adoption of MSB 17.31 Wetlands
Management (Staff: Ted Eischeid)
Unfinished Business
(None)
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New Business

(None)

Commission Business

Adjudicatory (if needed)
Upcoming Planning Commission Agenda Items (Staff: Alex Strawn)

Upcoming PC Actions

Quasi-Judicial

Legislative

D&S Alaskan Trail Rides, Inc. — Denali SpUD, 29N05W33D012 and
29N05W33D0028 (Staff: Joe Metzger).

Nu Aspen LLC — Talkeetna SpUD, 5352B12L014A (Staff: Joe Metzger).

Nu Aspen LLC — Regulation of Alcoholic Beverages, 5352B12L014A (Staff: Joe
Metzger).

Faded Moose Farms, LLC — Marijuana Cultivation Facility, 5902000L001 (Staff:
Mark Whisenhunt).

Northern Alliance — Marijuana Cultivation Facility, 17N04W25D005 (Staff: Mark
Whisenhunt).

Trichs, LLC — Marijuana Retail Facility, 1111B01L011 (Staff: Joe Metzger).
Hatchers Grass — Marijuana Retail Facility, 6381000L001 (Staff: Joe Metzger).
Midnight Sun Distributers — Marijuana Retail Facility, 1780B01L001 (Staff: Joe
Metzger).

Colaska, Inc. — MSB 17.30, 20N04WO06 (Staff: Joe Metzger).

Nixon — Variance MSB 17.65, 6070000L1067 (Staff: Joe Metzger).

R1 Corporation — Regulation of Alcoholic Beverages, 9057000L002 (Staff: Joe
Metzger).

Title 17 Consolidation (Staff: Mark Whisenhunt).

Resolution 20-23 a Resolution recommending Assembly approval of an ordinance
amending MSB 15.24.030(C), The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Lake Management
Plan, adopting MSB 17.59.063 Adoption and Amendment of Regulations on Lakes;
and MSB 17.59.065 Regulations on Lakes; and repealing MSB 15.24.031 Initiating
and Amending Lake Management Plans, MSB 17.58 Motorized Uses on Lakes and
Waterways, and MSB 17.59.060 Limitation of Uses in their entirety (Staff: Kim
Sollien).

Marijuana Code Update (Staff: Alex Strawn)

Other Upcoming Administrative Actions (Not going to the PC)

Aldeman — Multifamily Permit; 17N01W18B011 (Staff: Joe Metzger).
Birdsell #1 — Nonconforming Structures, 6040B03L016 (Staff: Joe Metzger).
Canit — Nonconforming Structures (amnesty) — 19N04W33D020 (Staff: Mark
Whisenhunt).
Hinderman - Nonconforming Structures, 6043B01L006 (Staff: Joe Metzger).
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Bridgeway Community — Multifamily Development Permit, 17N02W11B005
(Staff: Joe Metzger).

Woodland Park — Nonconforming Structures (amnesty) — 3037B01L027 (Staff: Joe
Metzger).

Frontier Dream — Administrative Permit for Earth Materials Extraction, 5745000L002
(Staff: Mark Whisenhunt).

Midnight Landing Lot 2 — Multifamily Permit, 7702000L002 (Staff: Mark
Whisenhunt).

Walten — Nonconforming Structures, 6177000L005 (Staff: Joe Metzger).
VanGunten — Nonconforming Structures, 17W02E25B007 (Staff: Joe Metzger).

PC Decisions Currently Under Appeal

Resolution PC 19-17, a Conditional Use Permit in Accordance with MSB 17.60 —
Conditional Uses; allowing for the operation of a marijuana retail facility, located at
1204 N. Hyer Spur (Tax ID# 7775000L002); within Township 17 North, Range 1 East,
Section 4, Seward Meridian. Appealed to the BOAA. Planning Commission decision
upheld by BOAA on September 11, 2019. Appealed to Alaska Superior Court
(Applicant: Teri Zell, on behalf of Higher By Bad Gramma3r, LLC; Staff: Joe Metzger).

Updates on PC items going to the Assembly (Pending)

(None)

Updates on PC items that went to the Assembly (Complete)

(None)
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